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23 August 2017 
 
 
Mr Paul Baxter 
Commissioner 
Fire and Rescue NSW 
1 Amarina Avenue 
GREENACRE    NSW    2190 
 
Attention: Deputy Commissioner Graeme Finney 
 
 
Dear Mr Baxter, 
 
Re: Diploma in Leadership 
 
I write further to the Union’s letter of 10 August and the Department’s letters of 11 and 18 
August. As you know, the Union agreed to the advertisement of the Diploma in Commissioner’s 
Orders 16/2017, subject to clarification that this training would be undertaken on duty.  
 
The Department’s draft advertisement asserted that this training would be performed off duty 
and with no payment of overtime. This was contrary to subclause 15.3 of the Permanent 
Firefighting Staff Award which unambiguously provides for this situation: 
 
15.3 Upon request, the Department will consider an application by an employee to attend a 

course which is appropriate, relevant and recognised by the Department but is not 
essential for promotion. If approval is granted by the Department for the employee to 
attend such a course, the employee shall be entitled to the provisions of Clause 16. 

 
There is no discretion available to either party (Department or Union) here. The Awards are 
legally binding on both parties, and on all employees. A permanent firefighter who is approved 
to attend this course when rostered off duty must be paid overtime pursuant to subclause 16.10 
for any part of the course undertaken while he/she is rostered off duty, and a retained firefighter 
who is approved to attend this course must be paid for any and such attendances pursuant to 
Clause 6 of the Retained Firefighting Staff Award. 
 
The Department chose to withdraw the disputed item from last week’s Commissioner’s Orders 
without notice to the Union. That was your decision, not ours, and it is neither correct nor 
appropriate for your staff to now be telling your employees that the FBEU (a) was responsible 
for it and (b) is refusing to meet and/or discuss the issue further. The Union is available and 
willing to meet with your representatives at City of Sydney Fire Station tomorrow at 1pm. 
 
Yours sincerely, 

 
Leighton Drury 
State Secretary 
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1-7 Belmore Street Surry Hills NSW 2010 
 

Telephone  02 9218 3444       Facsimile  02 9218 3488       E-mail  office@fbeu.net       Website  www.fbeu.net 
 

 
10 August 2017 
 
 
Mr Paul Baxter 
Commissioner 
Fire and Rescue NSW 
1 Amarina Avenue 
GREENACRE   NSW   2190 
 
Attention: Mal Connellan, Executive Director People and Culture 
 
Dear Mr Baxter, 
 
Re: Diploma in Leadership 
 
The Union writes regarding your correspondence of 4 August and 15 June on this matter. 
Unfortunately the interpretation of the TRC meeting draft minutes (since adopted) by the 
Department is inaccurate. The action item was for the Department to write to the FBEU outlining 
what it was seeking to implement, and how it would comply with the Crown Employees (Fire 
And Rescue NSW Permanent Firefighting Staff) Award 2017 as the Department representatives 
in attendance at the May meeting could not answer the questions the Union posed at that time. 
These questions are set out below, but it is worth noting that the Committee itself had not 
formed a view on whether or not this should be pursued, and as such had not advised the 
Commissioner. It was never the view of the Committee that the proposed implementation and 
delivery of the Diploma was outside of its remit.  
 
The following questions have been posed to Department representatives at various stages in 
regard to this matter, and we seek the Department’s response: 
 

1. Your correspondence of 15 June says that participants will not be paid. This appears to 
be a proposed breach of clause 16 of the Crown Employees (Fire And Rescue NSW 
Permanent Firefighting Staff) Award 2017, whereupon employees who participate, with 
Departmental approval, in training programs, examinations or assessments conducted 
by, on behalf of, or approved by the Department are not only paid but entitled to other 
benefits. How does the Department say clause 16 doesn’t apply? 
 

2. If a member is on shift, will they be released for attendance? Will they be paid? Will 
there be a recall to cover their position if they are released? 
 

3. Who is paying for the course - the member or the Department? What is the cost? 
 

4. Your correspondence makes applications subject to approval by Area Commanders. 
Does this mean that if an Area doesn’t have sufficient budget a prospective candidate 
will be denied? 
 

5. From Leading Firefighter to Inspector candidates complete the following modules that 
are directly related to leadership (and others that overlap the subject): Lead, Manage 
and Develop teams; Crisis leadership and decision making; Manage human resources 
and; Promote a learning environment in the workplace. Does the Department suggest 



this is deficient for those ranks? If so, where does the Department say that a diploma of 
leadership fits in terms of progression and promotion? If not, what is the point of the 
Diploma? 

6. Why is the Department prioritising this when there is a host of other training that is 
necessary that the Department is not delivering, and complains about not having enough 
resources to provide? Retained Incident management training, rescue operator training, 
confined space training, regional appliance training and BLS recertification are all areas 
that require resources, and deserve budget allocation before a leadership diploma. 

A reply to the above questions is sought by 24 August 2017.  

Yours sincerely, 

 

 
Leighton Drury 
State Secretary 
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Mr Leighton Drury 
State Secretary 
Fire Brigade Employees’ Union of New South Wales 
1 – 7 Belmore Street 
SURRY HILLS NSW 2010 
 
 
4 August 2017 
 
 
Dear Leighton,  
 
I write to you regarding the Diploma in Leadership Selection Procedure and call for applicant’s 
publication which was withdrawn from the Commissioner’s Orders this week, due to FBEU 
concerns around ongoing consultation via the Training Review Committee (TRC).  
 
TRC meeting minutes indicate that consultation regarding the Diploma in Leadership initiative 
commenced in the TRC meeting of 28 February 2017 and concluded in the meeting of 30 May, 
where it was agreed that the matter would be more appropriately progressed outside of the 
TRC. FRNSW sent a letter on 15 June 2017, to which a response has not been received. 
Further, with reference to the selection procedure specifically, it was understood that 
agreement had been reached on the proposed document, subsequent to TRC discussions and 
further correspondence between the FBEU and Assistant Commissioner Ruecroft.   
 
I request the FBEU forward their concerns with any further feedback or comments on this 
matter by 10 August due to contractual obligations with Riverina TAFE. FRNSW proposes to 
publish these documents in the next Commissioners Orders 
 
 
Regards,  
 
 
Yours sincerely 
 
 
 
 
 
Malcolm Connellan AFSM 
Executive Director People and Culture 




